M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 29, 2003
9:01 AM

TAPES

SFC-03 # 67, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Gary WI ken convened the nmeeting at approxinmately 9:01 AM
PRESENT

Senator Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senator Gary W1 ken, Co-Chair
Senat or Ben Stevens

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Con Bunde

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Al so Attendi ng: REPRESENTATIVE JIM HOLM SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS;
PAT DAVIDSON, Director, D vision of Legislative Audit; LAURA ACHEE,
staff to the Legislative Budget and Audit Conmittee; JOHN BARNETT,
Executive Director, Board of Storage Tank Assi stance, and private
sector contractor;

Attendi ng via Tel econference: From an offnet |ocation: DWAYNE
BANNOCK, Director, Division of WMtor Vehicles, Departnent of
Adm ni stration; From Mat-Su: GARY WEBER, Owner, Wasilla Chevron,
and President, Underground Tank Omers Association of the State of
Al aska

SUMVARY | NFORVATI ON

HB 59- CLEANUP OF | LLEGAL DRUG SI TES

The Conmmttee heard from the sponsor and the bill noved from
Commi ttee.

SB 146- COMMEMORATI VE VETERANS LI CENSE PLATE

The Conmmittee heard from the sponsor and the Departnent of
Adm nistration. The bill was held in Committee.

SFC- 03 (1) 04/ 29/ 03



HB 187- EXTEND BOARD OF STORAGE TANK ASSI STANCE

The Committee heard from the Division of Legislative Audit, the
Legi sl ati ve Budget and Audit Conmttee, the Board of Storage Tank
Assi stance and t he Underground Tank Oaners Association of the State
of Al aska. The bill was reported from Commttee.

SB 86- 1 NTEREST ON DELI NQUENT TAXES
This bill was schedul ed but not heard.
#HB59

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 59(FIN) am

"An Act relating to the evaluation and cl eanup of sites where
certain controlled substances may have been manufactured or
stored; and providing for an effective date.™

This was the second hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

Co-Chair WIken noted Amendnent #1 was adopted at the previous
heari ng.

REPRESENTATI VE JIM HOLM sponsor, testified to the nultiple
hearings this bill has received, as well as hearings on a simlar
bill during the previous |legislative session. He commented that
this legislation has “nmaintained its integrity” during the process.
He furthered that it is a “good step help protect the children of
Al aska fromthe potential danage of methanphetam ne | abs.”

Co-Chair Geen offered a notion to report HB 59, 23-LS0341\U, as
anmended, from Conm ttee.

Wt hout objection, SCS CS HB 59 (FIN MOVED from Commttee with
i ndi vi dual reconmmendati ons and fiscal notes #1 fromthe Departnent
of Public Safety and #3 from the Department of Environnental
Conservati on

#SB146
SENATE BI LL NO. 146

"An Act relating to a cormenorative veterans' |icense plate,;
and providing for an effective date.”

SFC- 03 (2) 04/ 29/ 03



This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

Co-Chair WIken explained this bill “allows Al askans to purchase a
speci al request |license plate commenorating veterans.”

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS, Sponsor, testified that many Al askans
support veterans and sone have requested a way to show that support
as well as contribute to veterans’ services. She stated this
| egi slation would inplenent a special |icense plate program for
veterans simlar to the Children’ s Trust |icense plate program She
noted an exception would be a $35 biannual fee to allow vehicle
owners to continue to donate for veterans’ services.

Senat or Quess estimated the program woul d generate between $20, 000
and $60,000, and reiterated this would allow notorists to
denonstrate their support of veterans.

Senator CGuess infornmed that nmany other states have simlar |icense
pl ates to conmenorate veterans.

Senat or Bunde noted discrepancies in the fiscal note between the
$2, 900 operating expenditures and $13,500 change in revenues.

Senat or CGuess explained that the D vision of Mdtor Vehicles based
these estinmates on the Children’s Trust |icense plate program and
predicted the revenue generated from the veterans’ plates would
exceed the manufacturing costs.

Senat or Bunde clarified the program woul d generate revenue.

Senat or CGuess affirned revenue would be generated and that the
Legi sl ature woul d have the option of appropriating those funds for
veterans’ services. She clarified that the Legislature is
restricted from dedi cating funds.

Senator Bunde asked if the veterans’ plates would generate
approxi mately $10, 000 profit.

Senator Quess affirnmed and qualified that the Children’s Trust
| i cense pl ate program has generated nore incone.

Senat or Bunde noted the current veterans’ |icense plates contain
mlitary affiliated lettering and asked how the lettering on the
proposed plates would rel ate.

Senator Quess replied that the current plates are only available to
mlitary veterans, whereby the proposed plates woul d be avail abl e

SFC- 03 (3) 04/ 29/ 03



to the general public as well.

Senator Bunde established that this legislation inplies no
dedi cati on of revenue funds for veterans prograns.

Co-Chair Green commented that the revenue perfornmance of other
specialized license plates has been less than predicted. She
surmsed this is because of the nunerous special plates prograns.

Co-Chair Green asked about vehicle registration fee exenptions
based on age.

DWAYNE BANNCCK, Director, D vision of Mdtor Vehicles, Departnent of
Adm nistration, testified via teleconference from an offnet
| ocation. He noted senior citizens qualify for free vehicle
regi stration but would not be exenpted fromthe $100 fee of these
speci al license plates.

Co-Chair Wl ken ordered the bill HELD in Comm tt ee.
#HB187

HOUSE BI LL NO. 187
"An Act extending the termnation date of the Board of Storage
Tank Assistance; and providing for an effective date.”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

Co-Chair WIlken stated this legislation “extends the Board of
Storage Tank Assistance until June 30, 2007, as reconmended by
LB&A.”

AT EASE 9:11 AM/ 9:12 AM

PAT DAVIDSON, Director, Dvision of Legislative Audit, stated that
the Division perfornmed an audit of the Board of Storage Tank
Assi stance resulting in a recommendation for an extension of the
Board for four years.

LAURA ACHEE, staff to the Legislative Budget and Audit Conmittee,
deferred to storage tank program staff.

JOHN BARNETT, Executive Director, Board of Storage Tank Assi stance,
and private sector contractor, spoke about the seven-nenber Board
formed in 1990 with nmenbers appoi nted by the governor and who serve
wi t hout conpensati on.

SFC- 03 (4) 04/ 29/ 03



M. Barnett listed the three principle roles of the Board, all
related to underground storage tanks, the first of which is to
provide a certain |evel of regulatory oversight of the Departnent
of Environmental Conservation to ensure that regul ati ons inposed by
the Departnent are practical and are not financially onerous or
nore stringent than the federal requirenents. The second role, he
stated is to resolve disputes, both formally and informally, in
medi ati ng between the Departnent and regulated tank owners and
operators. He exanpled disputes including financial assistance
di sagreenents related to eligibility for loans and grants;
expedition of “no further action” letters on contam nated sites;
di sagreenents related to cl eanup plans; and ensuring comruni cation
bet ween tank owners and the Departnment. He noted that prior to the
Board’'s inception, disputes were handl ed through attorneys and the
Department of Law, with |legal expenditures significantly higher
t han actual cleanup expenditures. He concluded with the third role
of the Board to allocate funds appropriated by the Departnent to
projects based first on public health, then according to other
priorities as established by the Board.

Senator dson clarified this Ilegislation only pertains to
under ground st orage tanks.

M. Barnett infornmed that the financial assistance program
addresses those tanks regul ated under federal |aw established in
1988 and that the State underground storage tank program began in
1990. He stated that the “strict and onerous” requirenents
instituted by the federal Environnental Protection Agency to
upgrade tanks and clean sites resulted in costs “extrenely
prohibitive” in Al aska. Therefore, he stated only underground
storage tanks are included in the program

Senat or O son asked about cleanup of a pipeline or above ground
storage tank and whether the Board could beconme involved in
resol ving disputes relating to these facilities.

M. Barnett replied the Board has no authority, although it has
served as a nediator in past instances involving above ground
st orage tanks.

Senat or Tayl or referenced a section on Page 8 of the audit titled,
“Demand for cleanup loan programis still unknown” and asked the
basis for the prediction that participation would increase in the
| oan program after June 30, 2004.

M. Barnett explained the cleanup program began as a 100 percent
grant program and was anended in 1999 to award grants on a

SFC- 03 (5) 04/ 29/ 03



financial need basis with a $250, 000 maxi mrum anount. He added t hat
in 2002, a termnation date for the grant program was enacted
through SB 153 and that in 13 nonths from this date no further
grants would be issued. He noted that cleanup is underway at
approxi mately 50 active sites and that the owners and operators of
those sites would need to secure additional funding through the
| oan program which would not term nate. He expl ai ned that because
grants are currently available, there is no need for these owners
and operators to utilize the |oan program and subsequently accrue
interest debt on l|oans. He predicted an increase in |oan
applications would occur the upcomng wnter, as opportunity to
utilize grant funds would conclude with the end of the sumer 2003
construction season.

Senator Taylor anticipated the revolving |oan program activity
woul d increase with the term nation of the grant program

M. Barnett commented that “it took several years to...debug the
grant prograni to determ ne acceptable eligible costs. He stated
that adm nistering the | oan programwould be relatively new for the
Board and shared with the Commttee the argunent that because these
funds are the tank owners, additional allowances for eligible costs
woul d be requested. Therefore, he foresaw an increase of disputes
over eligible expenditures and subsequent increased workload for
t he Board.

Senat or Taylor asked if all eligible parties are participating in
the grant program

M. Barnett agreed and noted the | arger nunber of | oan applicants
than grant recipients because the financial needs criteria is |less
stringent for the |l oan programthan for the grant program

Senat or Tayl or commented he was concerned about the grant program

and spoke to efforts to “kill” or nodify the program®“to the extent
that it was rational”. He was concerned that as the term nation
date nears, interested parties would attenpt to continue the
program

Co-Chair WIken expressed it “heartening” to see a solution to an
i ssue that had been predicted as unworkable. He accredited this
significantly to the former Senator Torgerson's efforts on this
matter.

GARY WEBER, Owner, Wasilla Chevron, and President, Underground Tank
Omers Association of the State of Alaska, testified via
tel econference from Mat-Su to exalt success of the Board and the
program characterizing it as the best programin the nation. He

SFC- 03 (6) 04/ 29/ 03



asserted this was the result of a “total partnership” between the
Departnment, the Board, and the tank owners.

M. Wber told of the expectation that the cleanup programwoul d be
t oo expensive to operate, but noted that a tank fee procedure was
i npl enented to pay the operating costs of the Board.

M. Weber expressed that the tank owners “desperately want to keep
this Board” explaining the need for regulatory oversight and the
ability to change regul ati ons as necessary to “nake them workabl e
in both directions”. He told of the benefits of the Board as a
medi ati on function, which saves |egal expenses. He urged the
Commttee to pass this bill.

Senat or Taylor offered a notion to report HB 187 from Comm ttee.

There was no objection and HB 187 MOWED from Conmttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendations and fiscal note #1 fromthe Departnment
of Community and Econom c Devel opnent.

#
ADJ CQURNIVENT

Co-Chair Gary WI ken adjourned the neeting at 09:29 AM

SFC- 03 (7) 04/ 29/ 03



